
BOARD MEETING: Regular Meeting   
DATE:   Wednesday, January 22, 2025 
TIME:   6:00 p.m. 
PLACE:   Naples High School Library Conference Room 
 
I. Meeting Called to Order 
II. Roll Call 
III. Adopt the Agenda of the Regular Meeting of January 22, 2025         (Board Action) 
IV. Proposed Executive Session, Subject to Board Approval 
V. Pledge of Allegiance 
VI. Public Comments:  

  The Board of Education invites you, the residents of our school community, to feel comfortable in sharing 
matters of interest or concern that you might have with us.  The Board President will be happy to recognize 
those of you who wish to speak.  We would ask that you come forward and please identify yourself before 
presenting your thoughts. 
  Those items brought to the attention of the Board during this time may be taken under consideration for 
future response or action. (Individual comments will be limited to three minutes.) 
  As a matter of courtesy, we ask that issues related to specific School District personnel or students be 
brought to the attention of the Superintendent of Schools privately.  Thank you for this consideration.  
 

Board Response: The Board of Education is committed to keeping communication open and transparent.  
The Board of Education President will be working with the Board and the Superintendent to make every 
effort to respond to public comments directed to the Board of Education at previous meetings, during the 
next scheduled meeting. 

VII. Points of Interest  
VIII. Superintendent Reports – Administrative Updates - Presentations 

• High School Tech/Careers – Chad Ayers 
• Student Representative Update 
• Superintendent Update 

- Portrait of a Graduate 
- Regionalization 
- Instructional Priority 
- Hazlitt Vineyards 

• Administrative Updates  
• School Business Administrator Update 

- Budget Workshop #1 
IX. Board Reports  

• Budget Committee  
• Board Priorities   

X. Minutes             (Board Action) 
XI. Business             (Board Action)  

• Treasurer’s Report 
• Board Policy Update 

XII. Personnel            (Board Action)   
• Interim Administrator Agreement 
• Resignation  

– Teacher Aide 
– School Bus Driver  

XIII. Consent Agenda Items           (Board Action)   
• Substitute  
    – School Monitors 
    – School Teacher Aide   
• Internal Claims Auditor Report 

XIV. Adjournment            (Board Action)  



Regular Meeting January 22, 2025 
 
 

Page 1 of 6 
 
 

Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Board of Education of Naples Central School held on 

Wednesday, January 22, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. in the Naples High School Library Conference Room. 
 

Roll Call  Members Present: Robert Brautigam Gail Musnicki 

     Joseph Callaghan Angela Rischpater 

     Jacob Hall  Maura Sullivan 

     Amie Levine   
      

Members Absent:     Kelley Louthan and Steve Mark  
 

Also Present: Kevin Swartz, Chad Hunt, Nicole Green, Christina Brautigam and 

Michele Barkley 
 

Guests Present: Chad Ayers and Colleen Betrus 
 

A quorum being present, the Regular Meeting of January 22, 2025 was called to order at 6:01 p.m. 

by Board President Jacob Hall. 

 

Motion:      Robert Brautigam       

2nd:         Gail Musnicki   

Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the agenda of the Regular Meeting of  

January 22, 2025 as presented. 
 

Voting Yes: 7   Motion Carried 

Voting No: 0    

 

Motion:     Gail Musnicki      

2nd:        Joseph Callaghan 

Resolved, that the Board of Education approves calling an executive session at 6:02 p.m. for  

a) The medical and employment history of a particular person.  

b) The proposed acquisition of real property, but only when publicity would substantially 

affect the value of these things.   
 

Voting Yes: 7   Motion Carried 

Voting No: 0 

 

Board Member Kelley Louthan arrived at 6:02 p.m. 

 

Time out of Executive Session: 6:35 p.m. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 

Public Comments – Boards Response – There were no public comments. 
 

Points of Interest 

Angela Rischpater commented on concerns in regard to a social media post made by a homeschool 

student. Angela is happy that the school is a safe place for our students and appreciates the staff 

and the administration in addressing concerns.  



Regular Meeting January 22, 2025 
 
 

Page 2 of 6 
 
 

Jacob Hall shared that he and Superintendent Swartz attended the Legislative breakfast at BOCES 

last week.  The culinary kids served a great breakfast. Highlights and key points from speakers 

included topics on State Aid, EV Buses, staffing concerns with regard to Tier 6 Retirement, Portrait 

of a Graduate, phones and technology in the classroom. 

Robert Brautigam commented on how Rural Schools is presenting information on the state budget 

and thought that it was good information in seeing the big picture.  
 

Superintendent Reports – Administrative Reports - Presentations 
 

High School Technology Department – Chad Ayers shared information on the current course 

offerings by a department of two teachers. Current courses: Technology 8, Math 7 & 8, Metal 

Technology, Design & Drawing for Production, Product Design & Engineering and Computer 

Aided Drawing, Advanced Solid Modeling, Architecture, and Advanced Architecture. Chad 

elaborated on the student work within those course offerings as well as the departments future 

goals with revising course content and offerings to reflect the increasing number of students 

focused on skilled trade paths along with creation of a HS Tech Elective based in skilled 

construction trades and continuing professional development work related to CNC/CAM 

technologies, further implementation into department courses and develop Automation 

Programming unit for Tech 8 using U-Arm Trainers.   

Kevin Swartz thanked Chad Ayers and his department for the flexibility and the mindset on 

working with kids looking forward with incorporating the needs of the students for future 

endeavors with future employers.     
 

Superintendent Updates – Superintendent Kevin Swartz spoke on the following items: Foreign 

Language student presentations, Regents Week, Hazlitt potential land purchase, Portrait of a 

Graduate, Instructional Council meeting updates and Regionalization. 
 

⁃Kevin was able see that a number of NCS’s Foreign Language students prepared projects where 

families, teachers & administrators were invited to visit and see these presentations. It was 

wonderful to see the connections and the professionalism as these kids put the presentations 

together. They eloquently made the connections displaying their knowledge of the language along 

with the cultural and historical components. Very well done and great to see the students present 

in that type of manner. 
 

⁃Kevin thanked the High School staff, teachers &  administrators as Regents week is always a busy 

week that entails a lot of planning. Thank you for a smooth regent’s week thus far. 
 

⁃Kevin provided an update regarding the potential purchase of land from Hazlitt.  This past 

October, a discussion was held at our Board of Education meeting regarding the potential of NCS 

acquiring property from Hazlitt’s, specifically the land between our elementary school and Lake 

Niagara Lane.  It was agreed at that time, in the interest of safety and protecting our school borders, 

that the district continue conversations with Hazlitt’s regarding the specifics of a potential 

purchase. Over the past couple months, conversations with Hazlitt’s has continued and a verbal 

agreement was reached regarding boundaries and cost per acre as well as being the right of first 

refusal.  At this point in time, the district is working with Hazlitt’s on a formal offer with 

contingencies (environmental testing, NYS approval, and most importantly a community 



Regular Meeting January 22, 2025 
 
 

Page 3 of 6 
 
 

referendum/vote that would need to be held).  Should things progress smoothly through the SEQR 

process, we may be able to hold this referendum vote on the same date as our budget vote on May 

20th. As previously shared, a successful vote would be needed to finalize this purchase and it is 

important to note that there would be zero tax impact for our community as the funds for purchase 

exist in our capital project reserve. 

We recognize that our current athletic facilities are in need of significant upgrades; most all of 

these improvements were eliminated from our previous project due to inflationary increases across 

all aspects of the capital project.  While we know that the Hazlitt property could support such 

improvements, these details would not be determined until a later date and of course we would 

ensure all key stakeholders have a voice in that decision.  Today, our main concern continues, first 

and foremost, the safety of our students and ensuring that our school borders are protected from 

the many unknowns that might occur dependent upon who owns the property in the future.  Kevin 

will continue to keep the community updated as we move toward the end of the school year/budget 

vote.  
 

⁃Kevin presented a PowerPoint from the Instructional Council meeting that met a few week ago.  

Over the next few years, the Portrait of a Graduate mandate from NYSED will be the focal point 

for our students who will need to demonstrate proficiency in each of the components outlined in 

the Portrait of a Graduate to earn a high school diploma. Those components are: Critical Thinker, 

Innovative Problem Solver, Global Citizen, Literate Across the Content Areas, Effective 

Communicator, Cultural Competence and Social-Emotional Competence. There have been 

conversations asking questions such as: ‘where are we aligned already’, ‘what strategic 

shifts/changes are needed’.  NYSED’s timeline for Portrait of a Graduate in the 2024-2025: 

Introducing components, working on rubrics and looking at the revised standards. By Spring of 

2026: Learning details on credit requirements, standards and hope to learn about the rubrics. In 

2026-2027:  New rubrics and two electives, Financial Literacy and Climate Education in place. 

The Climate Education can be taught through our sciences. The Financial Literacy course may be 

available in the 2024-2025 school year. A couple of weeks ago, Chad Hunt was asked to present 

in a classroom and talk about financial literacy and investing. This generated good questions, eye 

opening moments and real-life connections with our students. In the year 2027: introducing the 

one-diploma system. In the year 2029: All proposed changes will be in effect. This is a new reality 

as Regents exams will not exist after 2027. Students will earn credits from various experiences, 

projects, and assessments that align with NYS rubrics. A shift towards “real world learning”, 

focusing on the strengths & learning styles of students. There will be new data input requirements. 

One thing to stress, we are already doing so many great things that align to this. For example, 

Colleen Betrus has supported for many years a very collaborated project with the 7th grade team 

where kids are demonstrating all kinds of skill proficiencies across many different content areas 

and those are the types of things that can be expanded as students go right through 12th grade.  

Additionally, the Portrait of a Graduate is also directive based and has expectations. For example, 

at the UPK-3 level, we need to be using Literacy Best Practices that go back to the Science of 

Reading. We have already begun some of that work. We will be reviewing what we have done to 

bring this literacy component into our elementary school and then put a plan into place to address 

any gaps we have. The good news is we have built some nice foundations in UPK-2 and continue 

to build on that work. 



Regular Meeting January 22, 2025 
 
 

Page 4 of 6 
 
 

 

⁃Kevin spoke also about Regionalization and that it is not the merging of schools. Two very 

different things. Regionalization is defined as “The effective sharing of resources across our region 

to ensure equitable learning experiences for students”. Kevin shared his views on this and things 

to consider. If districts are open to sharing resources and do a great job with it, then it could 

minimize the possibility of school mergers. There needs to be honest conversations on what could 

happen if we do not become proficient in sharing resources as well as looking at our strengths and 

deficiencies with resources. For instance, if we have an extra block in art, Spanish or math, perhaps 

a virtual course could be offered. Or other schools may need to place kids in certain special 

education programs and Naples might be able to bring them in and give them the programming 

that they need. That is the kind of thinking needed to move towards regionalization to remain a 

healthy district and give our kids all that they need. 
 

⁃Kevin shared information regarding the Educator’s Dilemma which exists in every school district. 

The balance between Autonomy (freedom from external control/influence; independence; 

accountable to self)  and Collaboration (working with others to produce, create, or implement 

something; shared accountability). The key going forward, not just for Naples, but for all school 

districts across the state – how do we strike a balance to make sure we have alignment. As we 

embark on this journey of the Portrait of a Graduate, we want to avoid misalignment. We want to 

avoid a false start as we embark on this particular work. Quote from Michael Jordan – Talent wins 

games, but it is teamwork that wins championships. A Portrait of a Graduate is going to help us 

focus on the progression from grade to grade, making connections with learning lessons. The 

single most important thing to value, to do this heavy instructional lift, that is going to take us 

through the next 4-5 years, has got to be that commitment in collaborating and relationships with 

the focus on aligned outcomes for our students. In closing, in a few years out, every teacher here 

needs to have that absolute clarity about how are we doing these things in UPK-12. We are doing 

things that already tie into this. It’s just expanding this with accountability.  
 

⁃Kevin shared the Instruction Councils Benchmarks for Success beginning at the elementary 

school with aligned instruction and approaches and exiting 6th grade having many doors open to 

them due to the aligned Tier 1 instruction which maximizes Tier 2 and Tier 3 supports. Entering 

Jr./Sr. High with content areas aligned to new standards and graduation requirements. Engaging 

with students to be proficient in the Portrait of a Graduate components. Building relationships and 

having regular conversations with students about strengths and next steps for career, college, trade 

or military.  
 

Budget Workshop #1: Assistant Superintendent for Business, Chad Hunt presented information on 

the budget. The first state aid run was received yesterday and included in the power point. This is 

an evolving document. This is where it stands today, 1/22/25. A discussion on the revenue 

projections and if needed, the Reserve usage to balance the budget would come from the ERS and 

the Workers Compensation Reserves. The School Property Tax Levy is projected to increase 

2.56%. This is an estimate, still waiting on information from BOCES, keeping in mind that the 

Tax Cap has to be submitted by March 1st.  Chad explained that the tax cap is still not covering 

inflation.  Chad shared the budget takeaway highlights noting that the budget to budget increase is 

estimated at 3.33%. The Budget Vote is Tuesday, May 20, 2025 in the HS Library, 7pm to 8pm. 
 



Regular Meeting January 22, 2025 
 
 

Page 5 of 6 
 
 

Budget Committee Report – Jacob Hall shared that the committee met today and went through the 

budget line by line. The budget is tight. It was noted that the Portrait of a Graduate is changing our 

focus and to be mindful of that in our budget. Kudos to the construction team on the hitting the 

December 30, 2024 deadline. It was the difference in receiving state aid. Thank you to Chad and 

the office for taking care of that. Chad Hunt shared that a review of the BOCES budget was 

reviewed and discussed and that would also be reviewed more closely. The staffing piece was also 

discussed with regard to retirements and attrition. A big focus was on the tax cap and that the board 

will need to decide on where the district needs to be by the next board meeting. Right now, it is at 

2.56% to balance.  Reiterated that the tax cap is due by March 1st. 
 

Board Priorities – Board President Jacob Hall stated that there will be a Board Retreat on February 

26, 2025, with details to follow. Time will be spent on sharing a meal together, hearing from the 

Administration Team and focusing on board goals and priorities. Our current website has 

information on the boards beliefs and goals that have not been updated in a number of years. As 

we go through this paradigm shift, with the information Kevin shared on the Portrait of a Graduate, 

it was noted that the collaboration  relationship is going to be critical along with maximizing our 

resources and looking at the critical piece of vertical alignment. The Portrait of a Graduate is now. 

This will be a big piece on how we help guide and move the district forward. We value our staff 

and our administrators. We are looking at our priorities and goals and more to follow. 

 

 

Motion:     Kelley Louthan    

2nd:            Angela Rischpater 

Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the minutes of the following meeting(s): 

• Regular Meeting of January 8, 2024 
 

Voting Yes: 8   Motion Carried 

Voting No: 0 

 

Motion:     Maura Sullivan      

2nd:            Gail Musnicki 

Resolved, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Naples Central School 

District Board of Education approves the following Business resolutions as presented: 
 

• Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the Treasurer’s Monthly Report as 

follows: For period ending November 2024. (Attached) 

• Resolved, that the Board of Education, upon the recommendation of the Policy 

Committee, with no second reading as per Policy #1410,  approves the following policies, 

regulations and forms as presented: 

-  Policy #7312: Student Dress Code 
 

Voting Yes: 8   Motion Carried 

Voting No: 0 

 
Motion:     Gail Musnicki      

2nd:        Robert Brautigam  



Regular Meeting January 22, 2025 
 
 

Page 6 of 6 
 
 

Resolved, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Naples Central School 

District Board of Education approves the following personnel item(s) as presented:  
 

• Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the Interim Administrator Agreement 

between Naples Central School and Matthew Mahoney, effective January 13, 2025 through 

June 30, 2025. (Attached)  

• Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the following resignation, with regret: 

- Lexus Douglas, Teacher Aide, effective 01/25/25. 

- Maureen Clark, School Bus Driver, effective 01/22/25.  
 

Voting Yes: 8   Motion Carried 

Voting No: 0 

 

Motion:      Kelley Louthan     

2nd:       Angela Rischpater 

Resolved, that the Board of Education, upon the recommendation of Superintendent Kevin 

Swartz, approves the Consent Agenda Items as presented: 
 

a. Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the following Substitute appointment, 
pending a successful background clearance report provided to the school as a result of the 
fingerprinting process: 
Name   Position 
Lena Uthe  School Monitor, effective 01/10/2025    
Sadie Frederick Teacher Aide, effective 01/21/2025 
Sadie Frederick School Monitor, effective 01/21/2025 
 

b. Resolved, that the Board of Education hereby approves the Internal Claims Auditor 
Report for the 2nd  quarter of the 2024-2025 School Year.  
                  

Voting Yes: 8   Motion Carried 

Voting No: 0 

 

Motion:     Robert Brautigam     

2nd:        Kelley Louthan 

There being no further business, the Regular Meeting of January 22, 2025 is hereby adjourned at 

7:52 p.m.  
 

Voting Yes: 8   Motion Carried 

Voting No: 0 

 

 

Dated this 22nd day of January, 2025 

 

 

_______________________ 

Michele Barkley 

District Clerk 

 



















































 

      POLICY     

 
 

 20072025 7312 
 
 

 Students 
 

 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: STUDENT DRESS CODE 
 

The responsibility for the dress and appearance of students shall rest with individual students and 
parents. They have the right to determine how the student shall dress, provided that such attire does 
not interfere with the operation of the school or infringe upon the general health, safety and welfare of 
District students or employees. Student dress and appearance must be in accordance with the District 
Code of Conduct. The administration is authorized to take action in instances where individual dress 
does not meet these stated requirements.  
 

While the school administration may require students participating in physical education classes 
to wear certain types of clothing such as sneakers, socks, shorts, and tee shirts, they may not prescribe 
a specific brand which students must wear.  
 

This policy does not mean that student, faculty, or parent groups may not recommend 
appropriate dress for school or special occasions. It means that a student shall not be prevented from 
attending school or a school function, or otherwise be discriminated against, so long as his/her dress 
and appearance meet the above requirements.  
 Student, faculty, or parent groups may recommend appropriate dress for school or special 
occasions. However, a student shall not be prevented from attending school or a school function, or 
otherwise be discriminated against, so long as his/her dress and appearance meet the above 
requirements. 
 
 
 
 
NOTE: Refer also to District Code of Conduct on School Property 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:  6/27/07 
Revision:  01/22/25 








	10 - Regular Meeting of January 22 2025 - AGENDA & MINUTES FINAL
	01 - Regular Meeting of January 22 2025 - AGENDA - Initial
	02 - Regular Meeting of January 22 2025 - MINUTES FINAL

	08 - Agenda Blank Minutes Documents - Public Packet Website
	07 - Agenda Blank Minutes Documents - Public Packet Website
	Business - Treasurers Report November 2024
	Business - Policy #7312 Student Dress Code - Tracking
	Personnel - Mahoney, Matthew - Interim Administrator Agreement 01-13-25 to 06-30-25
	Consent Item - Internal Claims Audit Report 2nd quarter





